
MINUTES OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
NOVEMBER 8, 2018 

 
A special meeting of the Common Council of the City of Oneida, NY was held on the eighth day of 
November, 2018 at 6:14 o’clock P.M. in Council Chambers, Oneida Municipal Building, 109 N. Main 
Street, Oneida, NY. 
 
Meeting was called to order by Deputy Mayor James Chamberlain 
 

PRESENT: Councilors Alan Cohen, Michael Bowe, James Coulthart, Helen 
Acker and Thomas Simchik (arrived at 6:16) 

 
ABSENT:   Mayor Leo Matzke 
 

ALSO PRESENT: City Clerk Susan Pulverenti 
   Comptroller Lee Ann Wells 
   Fire Chief Dennis Fields 
   Planning Director Cassie Rose 

 
DISCUSSION - 2019 CITY OF ONEIDA MAYOR’S BUDGET 

 
Planning and Development  

 
Planning Director Cassie Rose said that in her budget she has a change in the salary line.  She said that 
she has been working for 2-3 years to have the Community Development Assistant job description, 
qualifications and salary updated.  The Director said that the job description had not been updated since 
1997, and the job duties are considerably different from those of 21 years ago. Director Rose said that a 
much higher skillset is required, as there are so many different grants/programs that her department 
administers, each having different rules and regulations, plus this full-time hire will assist in grant 
writing. She said that the education requirement of the CSEA position has been modified to include a 
four-year degree and will require passing a civil service exam.  
 
Director Rose said that currently she is administering the $21M FEMA Buyout Program, which a huge 
undertaking, and Councilor Acker added that just handling all the paperwork is a daunting task.  She also 
outlined the many other grants/programs currently being handled in her department, which include a 
$400K Home Rehabilitation Grant, $161K Economic Development Grant, $350K NY Main Street Grant, 
$700K Restore NY Grant, CNY Arts and Entertainment Masterplan Project with Syracuse, Empire Farms 
Project including water/sewer infrastructure, and the Revolving Loan and Façade Program. The Planning 
Director said that she has been working with CNY Regional Planning and Development since last 
summer on a downtown plan to use as a basis for next year’s $10M Downtown Revitalization Initiative 
Grant.  She said that that City is finally in a good position to submit a strong application because of the 
200 jobs the Green Empire project will bring into the City, along with the downtown streetlight project 
and streetscape.   
 
Director Rose said that under her materials and supplies line, the Mayor increased the funding to $1K, 
and she suggested scaling it back to the requested amount of $300. The Council agreed and $700 was 
removed from that line.  She said the contracts line has $14K in case a need arises to hire a grant writer.  
She said that this year the Restore NY Grant was paid by the applicant, and the costs for the Downtown 
Revitalization Initiative have also been covered.  She said that the City is not an entitlement community 
as is the City of Rome, and with competition for grant funding fierce, a grant writer’s specific expertise is 
sometimes required.    



 
In response to questions from the Council, Director Rose explained the CNY Arts and Entertainment 
Masterplan Project whereby CNY prepares a masterplan for the city, and then we submit ideas in our 
application to ask for funding for specific projects listed in the masterplan.  She also explained that they 
have a difficult time hiring contractors for the Housing Rehabilitation program, as it can take the up to 
four months before they are paid by the State.  Councilor Coulthart said that he would like to see audio 
visual equipment in the Council Chambers to bring us into the 21st century.  The Planning Director 
thanked the Council for their time.  

 
Fire Department 

 
Fire Chief Dennis Fields opened his budget discussion with the salary/overtime lines. The Chief discussed 
the impact on his salaries line due to retirements, rehires, job title changes, and current contract 
negotiations.  He said that he has three men definitely retiring with another probable, and the Council 
discussed the payouts for those retirements.  The Comptroller said that it looks like both Police and Fire 
will have an excess in their salaries line this year, and she suggested that on December 31st those funds be 
rolled into the Retirement Reserve Fund.  She said that there is currently $35,674 in the Retirement 
Reserve Fund.  Chief Fields said that his requested amount for short shift staffing was decreased by the 
Mayor.   He said this line was created for overtime for an understaffed shift due to retirements or until 
new firefighters finish at the academy. Councilor Bowe said that emergencies are funded by the overtime 
account. The Chief said that he may be able to save some money by hiring a candidate who has completed 
the academy. After a lengthy discussion, the Council opted to return the Short Shift Staffing funding to 
$58K, add an additional $6,396 in Fire Salaries and an additional $41,000 in Fire Overtime and remove 
$1,000 from Training Overtime.  The Chief said that the Mayor removed $3K from the amount requested 
for Fire Marshal overtime, which used to fund the departments inspectors, fire marshals, etc., however; he 
said he will work with the amount the Mayor funded.     
 
The Council moved onto discussion of the Equipment line (0200).  The Chief said that this line includes 
replacing the Fire Chief’s vehicle next year. He said the current vehicle is a 2011 Ford Escape, which was 
purchased in 2015.  He said that vehicle could be transferred to the Housing Inspector to replace his Ford 
Focus, which is in dire need of repairs.  Chief Fields said that replacing the Ford Escape with a pickup 
truck allows for multipurpose use, adding they could tow a trailer with it as well.  The Council briefly 
discussed leasing vs. purchasing, and the Comptroller said that bonding is less expensive than leasing. 
The Council decided to put back the $20K cut by the Mayor back into the Equipment Line.    
 
The Chief said that he was okay with all the other changes to his budget.  He said that he would like to 
have a full-time Fire Marshal in his department working five days a week, as none of the current fireman 
are interested in being the Fire Marshal. Chief Fields said that the 413 Training line is used to purchase 
training equipment.  He said he would appreciate having the $5K the Mayor removed from that line put 
back in, as the department would like a prop to open doors with.  The Chief thanked the Council for their 
time.   
 

Miscellaneous Revenues 
 
Councilor Acker questioned some of the revenues.  She asked about the increase in building permit fees, 
and the Comptroller said that was higher because of the Green Empire project.  However, it was noted 
that $63K for that particular building permit has already been paid and is reflected in 2018. A question 
arose regarding the increase in City Clerk fees, and the City Clerk said she did not know why that amount 
was increased. The Council asked about the gap in franchise tax, and the Comptroller said this tax is 
received from Charter Communications twice a year.  She said the amount reflected in the budget thus far 
is lacking the second payment, which has not been received yet.  The Council briefly discussed the line 



for City Administrator and pulled the $50K in funding. The Deputy Mayor said that a committee should 
be formed to establish a job description and determine exactly what the job duties would be. The City 
Clerk said this would need to go through Civil Service as well.  The Comptroller said that she would like 
to put all General Fund gasoline in one line.  The discussion turned to creating a monthly report for gas 
usage, and Councilor Bowe said that Gasboy key numbers are assigned to specific departments, so this 
could be done.  Deputy Mayor Chamberlain asked about the Historian line, and the City Clerk said that 
line was previously funded with a $700 stipend each year.  The Deputy Mayor asked that $500 be placed 
in the budget to fund a City Historian, and the Council agreed.  At the end of the meeting, the Comptroller 
stated that the Council had removed a total of $50K and added $35,196.   
 
The next budget meeting will be on Tuesday, November 13th at 6:00 p.m. with the Police and Recreation 
Departments to be discussed.  
 
Motion to adjourn by Councilor Bowe  
 
The special meeting is hereby adjourned at 8:21 p.m. 

 
CITY OF ONEIDA 

                  
 
        _________________________ 

Susan Pulverenti   
 City Clerk 

 
 
 
   
 




